
Special Meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission of the Town of Ocean Ridge 
held on Tuesday, March 28, 2011 in the Town Hall Meeting Chambers.  
 
The meeting was called to order at 8:00 AM by Chair Jim Bonfiglio and roll call was 
answered by the following: 
 
  Mark Marsh    Ward Northrup   
  Mauro Walker                      Gerald Goray 
  Richard Bajakian   Chair Jim Bonfiglio 
 
 
III. APPROVAL OF JANUARY 19, 2011 MINUTES  
 
Mr. Northrup moved to adopt the January 19, 2011 minutes, seconded by Mr. Marsh 
Motion carried – yea (5). 
 
IV. DISCUSS CURRENT FENCE/WALL HEIGHT RESTRICTIONS AS 

PROVIDED FOR IN SECTION 64-44; FENCES, WALLS AND HEDGES 
 
Town Clerk Hancsak summarized her memorandum by stating the Town Commission 
received a request by a resident to re-examine the code concerning fence/wall heights.  
She stated that a concerned resident advised that the adjacent property had raised their 
property to accommodate a new detached garage in the rear of the residence and 
driveway leading to same.  As a result the existing barrier fence is now only 4’ high from 
the raised driveway side and 6’ from the concerned residents’ side thereby affecting their 
privacy.  She further explained that the code had been revised several years to address the 
change in elevations between properties by permitting a height increase by ½ of the 
difference from the lowest grade provided it was constructed of open material to allow 
for 50% light and circulation. She concluded by stating that a survey of other similar 
municipalities revealed that the average fence heights are similar to ours (4’ front and 6’ 
sides/rear) and measured from the lowest elevation and added that we were the only ones 
that provided for an increased height for differing elevations. 
 
John Wootton, 5907 N Ocean Blvd., commented that there has been an increase in new 
building to include raising the elevation.  He reiterated the Town Clerk’s comments and 
added that he is permitted to have unlimited hedges.  He stated that he has lost his privacy 
and can actually see the neighbors’ heads.  He agreed that there should be a height 
limitation but he suggested either considering 6’ high from the higher elevation or a 
maximum 10’ height. 
 
Chairman Bonfiglio questioned the allowable elevation to which Town Clerk Hancsak 
advised the average elevation requirement is 8’ but allows for up to one foot higher. 
 
Dr. Bajakian questioned if he could reach some sort of agreement with the neighbor.  He 
was advised that any increase in fence height would require a variance with a proven 
hardship.  Mr. Wootton agreed that there was enough for hardship variance. 
 



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING HELD MARCH 28, 2011 

 2 

 
Mr. Walker clarified that there is no hedge height limitation. 
 
Mr. Marsh commented that he felt the current code was adequate and it does allow 
mitigation with plants.  He added that if the height increase was allowed in one location 
the requests would increase greatly.   Mr. Northrup agreed.   
 
Chairman Bonfiglio asked if Mr. Wootton could plant a hedge.  Mr. Wootton commented 
a ficus hedge could be bad to which he was advised that there were other choices of 
plants such a Cherry or Eugenia that could provide the desired privacy and also be 
weather tolerant.  Chairman Bonfiglio also stated that this topic has been discussed at 
length in the past and the code provides that a hedge without limitation could be planted.  
Mr. Goray agreed that an alternative is afforded. 
 
Mr. Marsh moved to recommend not changing Section 64-44 regarding fence/wall height 
restrictions.  Mr. Northrup seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried – Yea (6). 
 
V. DISCUSS POSSIBILITY OF PROHIBITING BICYCLES ON THE BEACH 
 
Town Clerk Hancsak commented at the Regular Town Commission meeting a resident 
had suggested that the P & Z also discuss the possibility of prohibiting bicycles on the 
beach because people come to the beach (especially at the Beachway Dr crossover) and 
do not utilize the bicycle racks and/or just simply bring their bicycles directly on the 
beach and feels it is unsightly.  Clerk Hancsak added that a survey of other municipalities 
revealed that they have no regulations regarding this issue. 
 
Stella Kolb, 204 Beachway Drive, stated that she brought up the issue to the Town 
Commission because of the increase in beach traffic as a result of the apartments on 
Federal Hwy.  She stated she feels the issue will only get worse if not addressed and 
some sort of ordinance adopted.  She added that the neighbors are willing to submit a 
petition if necessary. 
 
Chairman Bonfiglio inquired whether people were falling over or getting hurt by the 
bicycles on the beach to which Mrs. Kolb and Police Chief Yannuzzi advised they were 
not.   
 
Dr. Bajakian asked if this was an aesthetic problem and if there have been any bicycle 
thefts. Mrs. Kolb advised that it was definitely an aesthetic problem.  Chief Yannuzzi 
stated there had not been any thefts recently and the only incidents involved unsecured 
bicycles. 
 
Mrs. Kolb advised that she would rather not see additional bike racks.  Chief Yannuzzi 
reminded the Commission that Beachway Drive, the crossover, and beach were public 
and there is no vehicle parking in the south end and the Town cannot prohibit the public 



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING HELD MARCH 28, 2011 

 3 

from utilizing the beach or choosing their mode of transportation.  He added that the 
Town does prohibit motor vehicles or vehicles on the beach.  Mr. Walker questioned the 
difference from a motor vehicle and a vehicle to which he was advised that a vehicle, 
such as an ATV or motorized bicycle does not need a tag but is still motorized.  Chief 
Yannuzzi also stated that he did not believe there was sufficient room for additional bike 
racks at that location as the majority of the ROW along Old Ocean Blvd. is located on the 
west side of the roadway. 
 
Mr. Marsh questioned whether there is an issue at Boynton Public Beach.  Chief 
Yannuzzi advised that the Town has not received complaints.  Mrs. Kolb stated there was 
a difference to that location because it was a public park.  She also stated that she realized 
it was a public beach however she felt that the Town should be able to adopt and enforce 
some regulations. 
 
Chairman Bonfiglio commented that adopting an ordinance may increase the need for 
police power at a time when budgets are very tight.  Dr. Bajakian responded by stating 
that the police have to enforce other prohibitions on the beach and did not feel that was 
an issue.  Chief Yannuzzi commented that it would take additional police time.   
 
Mr. Goray asked the Police Chief for his position regarding this issue to which he advised 
that he felt it was an attempt to limit visitors and it should not be a position to place the 
Police Dept. into.   
 
Mr. Wootton, 5907 N Ocean Blvd., stated that the thought now should be for what will 
happen or increase in the future because increased traffic will lead to more crime and 
other incidents.  He asked the Chief about the recent burglaries to which he advised that 
he felt there was no connection between the two involving the apartments.  He added, 
however; that there is increased vehicle traffic as the Town had received $700 in parking 
ticket fines for the last week. 
 
Mr. Marsh commented that he did not feel prohibiting the bikes on the beach was the 
solution and stated that DEP should possibly be contacted on whether the bikes hurt the 
dune.   Atty Spillias stated the Town is currently researching enforcement issues 
regarding dogs on the beach however the bikes would obviously not be on the water.  He 
added the private vs. public and local vs. state compounds that problem.  He also stated 
that if the Commission wanted to move forward then he would need to research if it can 
be done and he would also then check with DEP. 
 
Chairman Bonfiglio asked if there was enough room for another bike rack if the 
vegetation was cut back.  Chief Yannuzzi stated he did not feel there was enough room 
and there wasn’t much ROW on the east side.  Atty Spillias stated the Town could seek 
an agreement with the private owners for bike racks on their properties to which the 
Commission was not in favor of that idea. 
 



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING HELD MARCH 28, 2011 

 4 

Mr. Northrup questioned whether he should recues himself because he lived in the area 
mostly affected.  Atty Spillias advised that the discussion involved all of the public beach 
area and it was not necessary. 
 
Mr. Goray moved to recommend that the Town do nothing to regulate bicycles on the 
beach.  Mr. Marsh seconded the motion. 
 
Motion carried – Yea (6). 
 
Town Manager Schenck advised that he would still research an additional bike rack. 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 9:05 AM. 
     
       ____________________________ 
       Chairman Bonfiglio  
Attest: 
_____________________________ 
Town Clerk 


